Joint-Stock Company RANBAXY

Independent Auditor’s
on the Financia

epor
tatements

for the period ended 31 December 2021

Moscow | 2022




independent Auditor’s Rep:
[Translation from Russian m"agmm}

To the Shareholders of
Joint-Stock Company RANBAXY

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Joint-Stock Company RANBAXY (hereinafter —
JSC RANBAXY), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2021, statement of financial resulis
for the year then ended, supplements to the balance sheet and the statement of financial results, including
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for 2021, notes to the balance sheet and
the statement of financial results, and notes to the financial statements for 2021, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

in our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financia]'position of
JSC RANBAXY as at 31 December 2021, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Russian accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Audifor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the audited entity in accordance with the Rules of
independence of the Auditors and Audit Organizations and The Code of Professional Ethics of the Auditors,
which are in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Members of the Board of Directors for
the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Russian accounting standards, and for such internal confrol as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statemenis, management is responsible for assessing the enity’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting uniess management either intends to fiquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Members of the Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the entify’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstaiement, whether due o fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with 1SAs wilt always detect a material misstatement when if exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

b) obtain an understanding of internal controf relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control.

c) evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

d) conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aftention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, fo modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

e} evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Engagement pariner on the audit

resuiting in this independent L.A. Panfilova

auditor's report acting on behalf of the audit firm Audit qualification certificate dated
under power of aftorney No. 67/22 18 April 2005 No. K022777,

dated 04 March 2022 registration number 22006035483

Date of the independent auditor's report. 04 April 2022
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Audited entity Auditor

Name: Name:
Joint-Stock Company RANBAXY (JSC RANBAXY). FBK, LLC.

Address of the legal entity within its location: Address of the legal entity within its location:

27/8 Elekfrozavodskaya St., Room 14/1, Moscow,
107023, Russian Federation.

Siate registration:

4411 Myasnitskaya St, Bldg 2AB, Moscow, 101830,
Russian Federation.

State registration:
The registration entry was made in the Unified State
RegiStgF of Legai gtltles an 20 May 2004 under The -TEQEStFatEOH entry WaS made in the Unified State
primary ~ state  registration number (OGRN) Register of Legal Entities on 24 July 2002 under
1047796353846, primary state registration number 1027700058286.

Primary number of registration entry in the register of
auditors and audit organizations of the Self-
regulatory organization of auditors Association
"Sodruzhestvo" 11506030481,
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Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 2021 Codes
Form on CKUD 0710001
Date (day, month, year)] 31 12 2021
72883356
Entity Joint-Stock Company RANBAXY OKPO B
Taxpayer identificatien number INNE 7720508094
Type of econamic 1
aciivity Wholesaling of pharmaceutical and medical products OKVED 2 46.46.
Organizational legal form / form of ownership
Ownership of foreign legal 12267 23
Joint-Stock Company / entities OKOPFIOKFS
Measurament unit; thousand rubles OKEI 384
Location (address)
27 Elektrozavodskaya ul., bidg. 8, room 14/1, Moscow, 107023, Russia
The financial statements are subject to statutory audit YES D NO
Name of the audit firm/full name of the individual auditor
FBK, LLC
Taxpayer identification number of the audit firm/individual auditor INN 7701017140
. . . . o . OGRN/
Primary state registration number of the audit firm/individual auditor OGRNIP 1027700058286
Not ftem Code As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
otes December 2021 | December 2020 | December 2019
ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
6.1.1 intangible assets 1110 8 835 14 829 7 442
Resuits of research and development 1120 - - -
intangible development assets 1130 - - -
Tangible development assets 1140 - - -
642 Fixed assets 1150 13 867 7433 3158
Income-bearing investments info tangible assets 1160 _ _ )
6.1.3 Financial investments 170 1 005 000 550 000 -
6.1.4 Deferred {ax assats 1180 65516 143 007 81 030
Other non-current assets 1180 - - -
Total for Section | 1100 1083218 715 270 91 630
Il. CURRENT ASSETS
8.1.5 Inventories 1210 1039 399 1184 707 2 448 667
6.1.6  {inpui value-added tax 1220 1138 197 46 397
6.1.7 Accounts receivable 1230 3273413 3 026 081 2993 593
6.1.8 1240
Financial investments {excluding cash equivalents) 180 G600 525 000 281 022
6.1.9 Cash and cash equivalents 1250 54 193 200 662 78 $99}
including:
6,19 Cash on hand 14 10 16
6.1.9 Operating accounts 54 179 180 958 78 983
6.1.9 Foreign currency accounts - 19 695 -
6.1.10  |Other current assets 1260 3135 5 951 3513
Total for Section Il 1260 4 551 278 4 942 608 5 850 192
BALANGE 1600 5 644 496 5 657 878 5 041 822

B



Form 0710001 p.2

at3
Notes ttem Code Decj;rigte?12021 Dec,gfn:te?;(lz{) DecQ;er 2201 9
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
lll. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized capitat (contributed capital, charter capital,
51 - 1310
centributions of partners) 163 000 163 000 163 000
Treasury shares 1320 - - -
Revaluation of nen-current assets 1340 - - .
Additional capital (without revaluation) 1350 - - -
5.1 Reserve capital 1360 40 750 40 750 40 750
5.1 Retained earnings (uncovered loss) 1370 1 206 200 812 543 985 754
Total for Section (Il 1300 1 408 950 1018 283 1189 504
IV. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
6.1.11 Borrowings 1410 - 433 885 -
6.1.12 {Deferred tax liabilities 1420 6 807 13 531 16 462
Estimated liabilities 1430 - - -
QOther liabilities 1450 - - -
Total for Section IV 1400 5 807 447 416 16 462
V. CURRENT LIABILITIES
6.1.13 Borrowings 1510 - 3185 367 836
6.1.14 |Accounts payabla 1520 3979673 3932 152 4420379
Deferred income 14530 . - -
6.1.15 |Estimated liabilities 1540 248 066 258 832 247 540
Other liabilifies 1650 - - -
Total for Section V 1500 4227 739 4 194 169 4 735 856
BALANCE 1700 5 544 496/ 5 657 B78 5 841 822
Director Artur Vallev

{signature} (print name}

18 March 2022




Statement of Financial Results

for January-December 2021 Codes
Form on OKUD 0710002
Date (day, month, year)] 3t 12 | 2024
Entity Joint-Stock Company RANBAXY OKPQ 72983356
Taxpayer identification number INN 7720508094
Type of economic 46
activity Wholesaling of pharmaceutical and medical products OKVED 2 46.1
Organizational legal form / form of ownership
Ownership of foreign legal 12267 23
Joint-Stock Company { entities OKOPFIOKFS
Measurement unit: thousand rubles OKEI 384
For January- For January-
Notes ftem Code | pecember 2021 December 2020
311 Revenue 2110 6211 211 5 300 338
6.7.1 Cost of sales 2120 (3 921 848) {3 715 589)
314 Gross profit {loss) 2100 2 289 383 1674 749
3.1.3 Seliing expenses 2210 {1718 871) (1 544 036)
Administrative expenses 2220 - -
3.1.2 Profit (loss) on sales 2200 570 492 130713
income from participation in other entities 2310 - J
318 Interest receivable 2320 50 587 32 380
315 Interest payable 2330 (5718) {15 691)
317 Other income 2340 140 717 148 869
31.7 Other expenses 2350 (253 043) (503 558)
3.1.8 Profit {loss) before tax 2300 503 035 {207 287)
Income tax 2410 {108 379) 34 075
including:
3.1.8 current income fax 2411 {38 611} {30 833)
3.1.8 deferred income tax 2412 {70 768} 84 808
: Other 2460 - i
including:
6.11. Net profit (loss) 2400 393 656 (173 212)




Form 0710002 p.2

For January- For January-
Notes ftem Code | pacember 2021 December 2020
Result of revaluation of non-current assets not included inj 554
net profit (loss) for the period - R
Result of other operations not included in net profit (loss)
. 2520
for the period - .
Income tax from operations whose resuit is not included in
. 2530
net profit (loss) for the period - -
8.11. Total financial result for the period 2500 393 656 (173 212)
FOR REFERENCE ONLY
6.11. Basic eamings (loss) per share 2900 2 (1)
Diluted earnings (joss) per share 2910 - -
Director Artur Valiev
[signature) {print name}

18 March 2022
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Statement of Cash Flows
for January-December 2021

Entity Joint-Stock Company RANBAXY

Form on OKUD
Date (day, month, year)

OKPG

Taxpayer identification number

Type of economic
activity Wholesaling of pharmaceutical and medical products

INN
OKVED 2

Organizaticnal legal form / form of ownership
Cwnership of foreign legal
/ entities
thousand rubles

Joint-Stock Company
Measurement unit:

OKOPFIOKFS
OKE}

Codes

0710005

31 | 12 | 202

72883356

7720508094

46.46.1

12267 23

384

For January-December | For January-Cecember
Item Code zrgz 1 23{20
Cash flows from operating activities
Total receipts 4110 6 069 070 5 458 517
including:
Sales of products, goods, works and services 4111 8 015 657 51372740
Lease payments, license fees, royalties, commissions, fees { 4112 - -
Resale of financial invesiments 4113 - -
4114 - -
Other receipts 4119 53 413 86 777
Tofal payments 4120 (5730 783) {4 558 465)
including:
To suppliers (contractors) for materials, supplies, works and
services 4121 (4 296 948) (3 400 851)
Employee compensation 4122 (1 063 982) {944 828)
Interest on debt obligations 4123 (8 574) (17 288)
Corporate income tax 4124 (123 611) -
4125 - .
Other payments 4129 (237 668) (195 398)
Net cash flows from operating activities 4100 338 287 901 052
Cash flows from investing activities
Total receipts 4210 936 129 34 778
inciuding:
Sales of non-current assets (excluding financial investments)} 4211 16 231 11217
Sale of shares {interests) in other entities 4212 - -
Loans repayments, sale of debt securities {monetary claims
against other persons) 4213 875 000 -
Dividends, interest on financial debt investments and similar
receipts from equity participation in ofher organizations 4214 44 898 23 561
4215 - -
Other receipts 4219 - -
Totai payments 4220 {990 097) {813 708){
including:
Acquisition, creation, modernization, reconstruction and
preparation of non-current assets for use 4221 (5 097) (25 526)
Acguisition of shares (interests) in other entities 4222 - -
Acquisition of debt securilies (monetary claims against other
persons), disbursement of lcans 4223 {985 000} {788 182}
Interest on debt liabilities, included into the cost of
invesiment asset 4224 - -
4225 - -
Other payments 4225 - -
Net cash flows from investing activities 4200 (53 968) (778 930)




Form 0710008 p.2

For January-December | For January-December
ltem Code 232 1 23'20
Cash flows from financing activities
Total recelpts 4310 - -
including:
Credit and loan proceeds 4311 - -
Monetary contributions of owners (members) 4312 - -
Issue of shares, increase in paricipatory interests 4313 - -
Issue of bonds, bills and other debt securities, efc. 4314 - -
4315 - -
Other receipts 4319 - -
Total payments 4320 {426 675) -
inciuding:
To owners {members) in connection with repurchase of
shares (inferests) from them or termination or their
participation 4321 - -
Payment of dividends and other profit distributions to owners
(members) 4322 - -
In connection with redemption (repurchase) of bills and other
debt securities, credii and Joan repayments 4323 {426 B75) -
4324 - -
Other payments 4329 - -
Net cash flows from financing activities 4300 (426 675) -
Net cash flows for the reporting period 4400 (142 356) 122 122
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the
reporting period 4450 200 562 75998
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting
period 4500 54 193 2008663
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates against the ruble 4450 {4113) (458)

Artur Valiev

{print name)

Director

(signature]

18 March 2022




- - - Lels
‘Buipnioul
- - - 0ZLS [BIoL
6102 2quiadag Lg 18 8 | 0zOglequieoe( Lelesy | LZGZiequedsa Lgie sy | 8poD wa)|
ssnou-u) padojaaap s}asse ajqibuelug Jo 3509 [esHO0}SIH 271
[IZ73)] 0i9 - el - - e 0.9 020z 404 ZLLS
seseqelEp
(028) 0.8 - M [GFY] - - -[{ees) 049 LZ0Z 104 2015 pue sweiboid renduios
0} WBuAdoD saSHIIXT
{vi8) D€} 2T - -[{siv 5} 085S 22 {ogg 22) gLl 2l {159 62) g5 28 0202 o [
{80% ¥1) 0gl 12 - -Hesz 9 ¥El L [T vEL vz |) 0ElL 22 1202 104 L0LE
s1esse siqbueiul Jayid
Buipnou
(762 6) 008 22 - - - (609 §) 085 22 {ogs 72) €L 2l {782 oz) 0T €% 0Z02 104 LG slesse
(8/6 t1) 00y Z2 - - - (8.8 9) T {ral L} VG4 (62 6) 008 ZZ 120Z o4 00L5 ajqibueiul 1o |
$a%580| 89550 Sa880|
UBLAECLLE awlredwl ustredun
pue 1802 uoneZiIcwe 1800 ss0| uopezpowe pu 1500 suomppY pus 1500
P ——— [eouolsiH | paIRINMINSOY | [BOLICESIH uawiedw| peniosy —— |12oLI03S1H LonEZRIGWE {eoLO1SIH
paeRWnooy pelEnWNosY palgInuINoaY
pousd apol wiay)
uofieniessy lesodsiq
pouad au) o pu syl Iy polad sy} Jaac sabueyd 1e0A 2y} jo Buuuibag eyl 1y

1d

sjosse siIBUBIL JO SIUSWSAOW PUB 39U3ISHT "L°L
{a9y) sx0m [pa)Bojouyse) pue JuaudoloAap ‘Yo4eassl 104 sesuadxa pue s}osse ajqbuzug "

(poo.any) synsey [eioueUl] JO JUsWSlElg puR

199Ug eaue|ey] i) 0} S8I0N




- - - - - - -l D€0Z iod 151G
" - - - - - M R T AE ] LPlg
:Bupnjou;
- - - - - - - 0202 103 0515
- " - - - - - ©1EnZ 04 orLs a9y 210l
uoipod 1500 poyiad alj uciuod 1500 uciuod 1500
pasuadxg {2oUCISIH 4o} uogiod pasuadx3 |ECLONEIH SuonPRY pasuadxy jeatosH
o pasuadxgy A A
pola apod way
esodsig)
pouad ay} Jo PUS #U) Iy pouad auy Jaao sebuey) smak au; Jo BuluwiBeq sul 1y
S1NS34 (' JO SIUDUWISAOU pue SIUBISHHT "§° L
B2 il L0ET 9E5 § CELS siasse a|qiSuBEul JBUlD
- - 0.9 LELS saseqelep
pue swelbold Jeindwios o) wBuAdos salsnaxg
‘Buipnjouy
8l L Flsl 4 90¢ 9 QELs 12101
B10Z Joquisceq L€ e sy | DzZOC Jequaeda(] L ie sy | LZ0g Jequadsq |g 1B sy Ele] way

s1esse ajqibugul pezniowe A|ind £')




s -lsz 0E0¢ Jod {ssulreq
- - - LEDZ Jo4 2) puglq EZolol2 SU) J0j SjuBLIdO|eASp 9ARESID
-{{ozv) -loze 0z0z Jod
N - - L0z 104 adesobulieud, abew: ojoud
{lriv v} -rivy 0Z0¢ Jod
- i - 1Z0Z 404 285 §°9°0L'S1'0Z Mouieely Joepiog, dig 0apiA
-|{ees) -Jees 0Z02 105
- - - LE0Z Jod4 JEZ0U0 ], SIS
-1{os1) -[ogt 020z Jod
- - - LZ0Z Jo4 uool {BNSIA PUBIQ UIpEXa -]
-1(6e2) -|5€2 D20z Jod
- - - LZ0Z 404 Joepien, sbew ojoyd
-[{oog 1) -[oon L 020z 404 6615
- - - LE0Z 404 6815 LBZOU0|, di o3pIA
-[{o0s) -[00L 020z 10d BG5S
- N - +20Z o4 BE1& JIpeXs4, eug
-[{sve ¥ -[ave ¥ 0Z0Z Jod L6LS
- - - V202 104 1818 JLonensuowa(] jdesciulieud, did 0dpIA
- - - 0202 04 9615
RIE REE 1202 104 381 14S0UCS [BNSIA OLISNIY
- - - QZ0T 104 G6LS
gle - “j8LT L20Z 04 5819 1daouod [ensia |a1snig
9ZL - -1921 02Z0¢ 104 L] agnjunsolsel 1oegoiid
-1{548) -{v5y 9z LZ0Z 103 PoLg ‘Jooeseiy 'BZouo|d ‘WedsiN ‘180N T 8lS
0ge - -108¢ 0Z0€ 104 €619
0Gg - - 0SE LZ0Z 194 £gils soed Jaysig efesoed mau uipexas
8¢€ - ELLC 0Z0¢ 194 2619
ore E - ave £Z0Z 104 2815 .olpreosdsy Buonseya, Joy ubisep abexoed
TE = = 005 0Z0e o4 1615
005 -] - 00 i¢oc 1o iels wayshs Aelor]
‘Buiprjous
£2E & ez el - 966 Z) 00§ 0Z0Z 404 0615 [e1o} - ssaiB0ad Ul sjasse qibuell
EL¥ b (v5.) - ¥98 £Z€ L 1207 04 0815 Jo suonsinboy
- - - 020z jed LLALE
- - - 120 Jod Lale
Bupnjoul
- - - - - Q20¢ Jod 0436 |e303 - ssauBoad ul
- - - B - 1202 104 096 asH Je sisod
gy Je siasse ajqiBueiuy aagonpoidun powed st 10} 51502
se paziubooey SB O USHM 51500 1eak
pouad au} jo pud Bl Y oy} jo BuwBag syl iy poued apon) wey

poiiad au; Jaao sabiueyd

gd

Scaiboad Uf S}9SSE spqibuelll (0 suonisinboe pue pazijeullof Jou pue ssaibosd ul O3y "9}




220¢ UdieN 81

{zweu juisd) (asmeufs)

ABHEA JMUY 2010811



- - - - - E - - - 0207 304 LEES
- - - - - - - - - LZOE 40d L22g
Buipnjouy
- - - - - - - - - 020z 104 0EES sjesse a|qIbue),
ol sjuswysaaut Busesqg-awoou; 210 L
- - - - - - - - - LZ0Z 2 0225
{022} 0.2 - - - - -jloL2) 0/% 20T 04 GLES
(022) 0.2 - - - - -{(0s2) 0% LZ0Z 104 5025 aois [euogeziuefio pue uononpold
[CD) yoPb - - - - - (50P) ¥OPF 0zZ0zZ 194 vLZs (uawdinbe sowo
(zor) YOy B B - - -{(v0¥) POy LZ0Z Jod ¥0Z5 1daoxa) wawdinbe puz Asuiyoep
(i51) 51 - - - - -{(251) 151 0Z0¢ Jo4 £LZs
(52 N - - B E {19) -{lzs1) el 120z Jod £02g $)a5S. paxy /U0
(09 /1) $0. 6L - -0z} c80 ¥l {060 ¢} 951 2 (aeg LE) 9€9 i 0202 104 ZLES
(use 1) e - lLey) 759 9L [CEEEDY ~[{ozg £1) ¥0L 6L LZ0Z 104 zZ0Z5 S3I0IUBA
(82221) Z06 L - (+80 €} GlEE (8o £) €95 ¥ (699 rL) 086 91 0202 Jod %4
(5p5 t1) ££0 €2 - (090 £) £68 (1£8) 509 [CYVIFY) 106 L1 1.20Z 104 1025 justudinba aoc
‘Buipniotn
(oez 1€) by ae - {(a51 2) So¥ /4 (ozL L1) CHW (6€5 o) 610 &¥ 0202 104 Q1Zs [GEE
aiqbue; ojui sluausaaul Bupeeq
{ego 21} £6L 92 - (Z6¥ £) 69¢ L} (oL L)) 1500 (ogz 1) by 8¢ 1Z0Z J04 00z _sUi0ol) BUIPN{SXa) S36588 PAXY (2104
uopeaidap 1800 uoneiosidsp 1500 S804} vopepadap | uogeosidap 1500 suanppY copelosidep 1509
pajgnwnoy | [Eduoisiy | peienuunooy | [ELCISIH Jeatedwl peniody | pelginunooy ]  eouc)siH - paje|nwnaay |  [eolo)siH
potad apon gy
LOBER|EASY |lesodsq

pouad sy} Jo pua ey} 1y

poled agy 18a0 sebusyd

Jeak ey jo BuiuuiBag ay) iy

¥d

S19S8E Pax|) JO SIUSWBAOW PUR BIUSIXY L'
sjosse paXid T




- - 1207 104 00Z000VIVYDZLEZOX Monl)L pelesebiyey plod Jep
-[{oB) -106 0Z0Z 404
- o 1Z0Z Jod ashow + Beg +G| sbnsald (S dode
-[{z2) el 020z 404
- - L20¢g 104 asnow + kg +G0) yoogZ dH dojdeT
-lave 12 -{6vE | 0Z0Z 104 (£9°'596¥Y) 0Z0Z/L0/EL YOIy BsnoLu
- - L1202 104 +Bedq + N0 50L-E1 2107 4D 0¥y Bd dH dade
-H228) {225 0202 404 ssnow
- - LEQZ 104 +68¢ + N0LLOL ~ £1 2103 4D 0FF Bd dH doyden
-HER) -leg 0Z0Z 04
N - LE0E 04 S5098 NUITESIaA
-f(2#9) - 119 0202 04
- - LZ0Z 193 Beq 0/m NO0ZLG1 SO Oy 9d dH dojden
- - 0202 104 {reuiBuio |ay) Josseocid +oioypadng
-j(651) -lagl 1207 04 unoneid pun WeisAs) craipedng N Janses
- - 0Z0Z 404
B[] -le0d LZ0Z 104 22'980PS 08I0 ¥ 00PE OHLSOA 1730 dojden
- - 0Z0g 194
-l6s8) ~16.E 1Z0zZ 194 9.'930¥S T H0BIA/0 ¥ L 00FE OYLSOA T1H0 dode]
- - 020E 104 652G
i (O] et 1Z0Z 104 6¥25 XOU| 3J2C] OX 2INF BUIEL 98507
= - 0zZ0e 1od 9525 Z umeg 22'980vS POBIG0 ¥
08y L -loar L LZ0Z dod LS 00E OHLSOA 113 doide
= - 0Z0Z 104 1525 Z yoieq 92'080%5 HORIG/O Fi
£0. -{e0L L0210 L¥ES 00vE OH1S0A 1134 dode
- - 020z 104 95e5
18 -[18 L Z0E 404 SVES suod Gypy 39X, vogeys Buissaocid eleq
- - 0Z0Z 404 55eg
195 26t 1) -IEG0 § LZ0Z 404 SHes (ZUST) ND0LY £ UBzAY Pl L9 Sty Bd dH doyder
E - 0zZ0Z J04 YSES
5 165 1202 104 PrZg Ae1gry sAUG-0 YZ0ZISIN HdH/YBLEM viAiYl 2del
- - 0202 Jod £525
569 -}569 1Z0Z 104 SYZS | DSETQ WEIOI] SdH/LFesipung LZg-09/61d Janag
o8l {cov) -1685 0Z0Z 104 fAr4%] (#9'596+%) 0Z0Z/L0/EL Yoleg ashow
-[{oBL) - 084 LZ0Z Jod A4 +Beq + N0LLOL-E1 310D LD OFr §d dH doyden
L {109 1) - 7Tl - 020z Jod 1625
v - - - [ 170z 104 1925 Beq + N95Z8 §1 9100 D 0¥k 8d oH daide
‘Buipnjout
K74 &Ly 2) - £69 9 e 0E0Z i04 05zZ8 | [2j0y — ssaiBold Ul sjesse paxij jo "9} uonezispow
‘sucysinbae pue sselboud U Lojangsuc)
IZL ¥ {260 9) - £56 6 \Z2 L20Z 104 o¥Es
dn uapum 1o sjesse
pexy 5% pazIUBuoaY HO USBUA pouad au} 10} S1$0D 1mak
pouad 8L} Jo pua sUL 1Y ay} jo Buipuibeg sy v polad apcd sl

poyad sy} Jaso sabueyd

ssalbold ur syuaunsaaul jeldeD ‘2T




LIZS

:Bulpnjou
0428 uonepinby
|enied 0 jnsal B SE S}9SSE PaXi JO 1800 B} Ul 3588108 (B0
L9zZ8
Buipnjoul
0925 uoponisucosal uswdinbe jeuonipRE UoNDRNSLOD
JBUHN; 6 1NSS B Sk SIOSSE paX)) JO 1502 By} Ul 8SBAIOU] (810 L
0Z02 104 1202 404 FpOD Ly
uonepinbi) jeiJed Lo UOIINLSUCTRS
quswdinba [EUOIIPDE ‘UCHINIISUOD L3Ny Woiy Bunsal sjesse pexy Jo 1509 ay; ui sabueyd ‘'z

-[{60L) -804 - ozoz Jod
E | - Leoz o4 12400 54 §d¥ 1730 dooqenin dojden

-[{agt 2) {051 Z -| ozoz iod




od

(auuen ppd)

fasmynubiis)

2202 UWIBN B

AsljeA anay

Joypena

221 991

566 9Lt

ISy 6Ll

6L0Z 184iliaaa(] Lg B Sy

(Z0Z 13quianag] LE 12 sY

1Z07 2PqWanag £ 1e sy

LBZS
] {oje "eleleljo)
S18S52 NI JO 95N J8Ui0y
§RBZS UOEAIDSUCD O} PaMBJSURI] 19558 paxid
raes uchensibal alejs Jo sseanud i 'pasn
Alenioe pue ueheiado Joj pardance Apedosd siqeacuiul Jo sway
[5:7d 123Us 20uB[Eq aU) Jo S1B9sE ek pesed
CRES 189US @JUB[EY ey U0 SJoSSE paxi pesed
1929 18815 SBUBJEY OY) JJC S155E paxi) ;N0 pesed]
0828 188G S 8oUeiEq S} UG S)a558 Paxy o pasea’]
3000 way

SJASSe paxy Jo 8sn Jeul0 VT




9562 G p0ZEO0 L 9816 - {11z 6.2 8}) |66t oD 6L [(9L6 +) BEE G892 0z0Z 104 0LES
- pooselL L |- - {coosoga) [ooosi6R  |98LS ¥0Z 630 L 1202 104 00EG SJUBLLISBAUI [BIDUBLY (EIOL
964 § 0T 615 96 G -Ziz 6z 81) [BBE 2168 [{9L6 ¥} 8ES G52 0202 104 L3ES
-]oco oS! -[looosoe8) JOOCOER L (962G 70Z 616 V20T 304 L0OES S)is0dap AuSE
- - - - - - - - Q702 104 GLEG
- 000 0€ - - - 000 0DE - - 120z s0d g0gs pansst sUeon
Buipnjout
962G y0e 6LS 96LG - (/ize/z 81y {66L 2158l {(OL6Y) 9E6 582 0Z0T Jod §leg
- GO0 081 - - {ooosoc9) [000096 . {9846 Y0Z 615 120Z 1 GOEG |BJ0} - uLSl-oYs
- €00 055 - - - 000 055 - - 0Z0Z 14 Z1Eg
- 000500 1L |- - {000 008} 00O 556 - 000 055 120z o4 Z0ES pansst sU20T
Bupnouw
- 000 055 - - - 000 06§ - - 0Z0Z 104 LLES
- 0p0so0 L |- - (oo 00s}  |000 656 - 000 055 1202 Jod L0ES {ejc] - wia)-fuo
(ss0} (anjea
Juawisnipe 1500 Jueumedu) O p— wawysnipe 1509 T jusw)snipe 1509
PHBINWNGIY ]  [BOUCISIH D —— Busg o) Buipniou) pPAIBINWNIoY | |BDUOISIH pajeinwnsay | |esloisiy
pouad apa) way|
ITE=T ) 15818l JO (BnIadYy {pieday} Jo pescdsi(]

pouad ay) jo pus aw iy

peciiad sy Jono sabueys

eed au jo BuiuuwBeq a1y

Ld

SJUBUNSOAU! [BISUEBLUL JO SIUBLWISAOW PUE 8US)SIXT L'
SIUBULSSAUI [RIDUBUE] T




gd

202 yslel gl

{awes upd) {aameuBis)

ASHEA Y Jo08a

B - - BZES SJUBLISIAL] |BIDUBLY [0 88N JBUlQ
- - - 9zes
Buspngou
- - - GZES 210]
— (328 1danxa) se|UEd PAY} O) POUBJSUR SJUBUIISSAU! [BIGUBL
N - - 1Zes
Brapnout
- - N 02es |€10) — sjuatgsaaL [eioueuy pabipalg
6107 Jequiedeq LE 1B 5Y 0Z0Z f8qsda() LE J8 8y LZ0Z Jsquiasad L e sy Bpal w3y

SHISLU)SBAU| |BIDUBUL JO 95N IS0 'S



- - - B - - - - - - - 0202 404 1255

- B - - - - - - - - - 1707 104 4055
FAVE] - ZLLB - - - (06 A1) [ves el BPLZL - BrLZt 0z0E Jod gzve (018 sasuadxe uopepodsies
‘SWOIEND 18 S30puas obies Suipnjau) ‘sesuadxe
£4L ¥ - €5/ 7 - - - {116 1) [Z55 €l Zil 8 - [ 1202 10 S0¥S PSIR00E) 51500 puE SBUtiUSAUl JBUID

- - - - - - - - - - - CZ0T 10 SZVS
- - - - - - - - - - - 120Z 404 S0PS s)s00 ssaufiold Ul oA

- - - - - - - - - - - QZOZ 404 (S
n - - - = - - = B - - L202 Jed PObS paddis sionpoud paysiuy pue spoos)

786511 [UBELLY) [8vELKAlL |- 6el vev)  [26Z 80t {800 298 £}[BEO 226 T ¢/l LEvE  [(vBrGSL)  [/59985 % (202 fod £2¥5
£v9 pE0 L |{G8€ 89} gzoe0t 1 | (goy zog)  [ioi ol (6.9 L8 ¥}[08G €60 ¥ 196GV L [(IBE L2y [BPE VDL L20C 13 £0rS 2|259) K Spe0Sy

- - - - - B - - - - - 0Z0Z 404 [T
- - - - - - - - - - - LZ0Z 104 ZOvS sjanposd pausiuld

6Z - 82 - - - (jee e} [ozoce S¥L T - 1254 0202 404 ¥44]
3 - 3 - - - (iesee) [9sgee 12 - 62 Lzoz Jod [oys  |siesse Jepuuis saljo pue sajjddns ‘sigusieu smey
Bugpnou;

04ver )L JUeeiiv)  [8B0 959 L X (68l v2¥)  |262 80t (962 516 £)[2E2 BIB T B3 orrz  |pBPSGL) [1GL208¢C 0Z0Z 104 0Z¥S
B6C 620 L [(SBE 8%) ¥84, L0} L X 591 Z0E) |19k S04 (197 689 W {86 OVl ¥ [0Lvel L HLBELLY)  [880969 L 1207 104 [ SaUDILBAUL (BIC)

(sadi) sasuadid
anfen Moo@ JusuLleduy 1500 sdnotb $8850] JuauLedut 250 S)500 anjen yoog JusuEdul o
IO} BOSIANL] UasMag JaAaum; ustiieduy | Joj uolsiaold 51507 pue syhasay 10} UaISIAGI] X
fsoyuanug ’ ponad apoD sy
|esedstg
pousad st JO pUS B 1Y podad 84y J2Ac sablRyd o o) iy

SOII0TUBAL] JO SIUSLIDAOW pUe a3URlsIXT "L
SBLIOILOAU] ¥




ovd

pousd aU) 40 pus B

Jeak oy Jo Bujuubieq aly iy

(815 901} A (P2t 501) 216 660 € 020z 194 0755
6.5 804) 166 8% £ (8.5 901) 659 ZEL € 1202 104 C05¢ 2oL
B - - - 0Z0E 104 PESS
- B - - 1202 4o 1G5
-|ze0 96 -[Eis 89 020 04 £€55
-|s¥6 501 REES 1702 464 £L5S BUYO
{8r0 1) 0Bt ZE 18v0 ¢ L5E T2 0Z0z 404 e85
{8v0 L) 851 OF 1890 1) 0EE ZE 1202 104 ZL85 2pEL S20UBADY
0£G S0L) LEZ Y00 B [ AT bea 156 2 0Z0% 1o4 1855
{ogs Gol) BB EVZE foes go1) JET YO0 E 1202 404 1155 SIRWOISTD puE $184NT LW siuswamag
-Buipnjou
(825 901) G589 ZEL E Tree 901) L6 6E0 £ 0Z0Z 104 0ESS
(8/5 901) 166 6/E £ {815 301) 658 281 € | £0¢2 Jod 0555 $81GBA|BO8S ULIS-HIOYS [R1OL
- - - - 0Z0Z 403 GZ5G
- - - - 10z 104 G055
- - 020z 404 Y259
- - 120z iod POSS 1240
- - 0202 104 £255
- - 1.20Z 104 £056 BpBl §90UBADY|
- - 020¢ 02 7259
- - L20T 404 2066 SIOWIOIST PUE S18ANQ LM SjUaWSies
;Bupnioul
- - - - 0Z0z 104 1255
" - - - LE0E 4o LGS sajceaenal uuar-buol e ),
S)03p MPGNoD J04 USISIA0IL lusuizaifie SI05P NEAROP JOj UOISIAGI Jususss:fe
o IBPUN 40} PELN0ADY A J48pLUN J0) PRUN0Oo0Y
PoLBd aposy way|

sajgeAed PUE SS[GRAIBDS] JO SJUBWAACLY PUR 80UBISIXT "L'S

sa|grefed pue saEMBIM G




1d

(A4 Gi€ 88k v 0Z0& 494 055
£108l6¢€ ZZT BIE ¥ 1202 104 0555 {£j0L
= - 0eae Jod 1855
- N 1202 404 19585
81§t T PR 020Z Jod 9856
866 L1 BLG L 1.20Z 194 8955 Sy
S8t € 986 98 0207 04 GBSG
- g8l € LEOT S04 G956 SURGT
- - 09Z0¢ 4044 PBSG
- - 1207 Jod PYLE supaln
Qe TOL I0EE QZ0E 204 £B5G
621 P71 0t¥ 201 [ALARE] €955 58Aa| PUB SOXE] UG S|UBLLB]sS
LET 92 {20Z 404 £85%
#0C 1£2 L 20T 404 7955 PaAIaDaL SEOUBADY
886 LIBE P59 €80 ¥ 0202 4o L85G
lreeyg e 896 L8 € tgazded 195G siopenuoD pue siaiddns Y suswses
Bupnpou
IEEGEG E SLE8BF ¥ € 10 0858
E/96.6 E LEEGEE E £20C d04 0958 sojgeded uuayyoys @10y
- - 020 104 G155
- - V202 104 5555
- - 0202 104 455
- - 1402 404 FS55 ECie]
G588 £EF - 0202 Jod €485
- §B8 EEF 1202 404 €555 suR07
- - QZ0E 104 2485
N - 120T 104 FASIEH SHRRID
Buipniau
GB8 EEY - DEOZ 104 LG5
- §88 £EF 120g o L5955 sajqefed uusy-Buo) [ejo )
FL-CTA
pouad ay; jo aly Jo BuuwBag
pUa au) ¥ soueleg| syi e scueleg pouad apon way
sojqeded JO SJUAWIIACW PUE SIUSISIXE £
- - yrss
- ~ - evsg Ehli®)
870 1 “[8bo 1 -|evo Zres
(sjuewhedesd ‘siuaied eoUBARE LO) S1SWOSND pue salddns Upm sjueWees
9.g 504 ~308G 501 -|oes S01 1pes SIBWOISND PUE S1sAng LM SlUBLIBNES
Buiprgow
FEE S0 8.5 a0k BG 801 orgs {BjoL
Jeiisaibe justuasaibe
anjea ¥00g Japun anleaoog Japun snjea yoog lusussalbe
J8pURN 10} PRIINGIOY
o} PBIUNGATY 1) PAUNOITY apan L)
6107 JOGQUIZIB() LE 1B 8 DZDZ J8qUSa] LE 1B SY {202 1aquiadsq 1§ 1e SY

S9|qEAI002] BNRIAD 2§




zid

(eweu jupd}

ZZ0Z Yoiek gL
{asnyeufiys}

ABJIBA AN

Ja)0ang

- - . £655

- - = EZEE] SIDWI0ISNT PUB S124ANg i SJUSUBES

- b - [3-1-] SI010ESUAS pue siayddns uns silaliajas

- - - 0655 G
§i0Z Joquisaad] 1E 18 sy 0Z0Z J2dulanag] L £ 18 5 L20¢ J30Wada | ¢ )2 Sy 8pel vy

sopqeded anplsag 'S




TZ0E Yaie gl

{awel Jupd) {2anjeufiss)
ARIBA, YUY 1053840
ST 8GC & 8108 G 0095 SafAoe AJELIPIG ol sasusdia oL
-| 0885 8 ‘spooh
paysiuy 'ssauboad ul suom jo {{+] eseesoep) seourieq ul sbueyy
| o485 ‘215 ‘spoch
paysiy 'ssalfold u o jo ([-] esesicun) ssouejeg u elueyg
GZ9 65T § 6LL0OPGG 0995 12j0t
b18126 LES 89S 0695 51500 180
v3L L 0/£ 01 0yes uvenzizaidag
fL028L 610 812 0E9S suonnaiuco fjinces |eoog
GiZ 89L €51 868 0294 5502 InogeT
968 68 € 05€ GHG £ CLog SasuUadxe {elLalen
G202 404 V2O 4944 epo] oyl
uopanpold 1o 1509 '




gid

{awey pupd)

£20¢ Y2:Biy 81

{sameubyz)

ASl|eA INUY

Jojpallg

08 {aoe 21) ~|868 Z1 9.5 spoob paulmal Joj UOISIAId#E
- -1i82 L (287 1) 6DLS (900! ) SIBLSIEW FELOROUIOIG JO JJ0-B]LIM J0j UDISIACIY

92901 - -i{ler 8] 103 6l 8046 seaAD|duie 0} sasniiog AUspEnD Jo juswAed 10) UOISIAGIY
0 ik -[1ez vl B6¥L 28 ¥5G 25 L1048 b1 p0’ 10/ UNOOSIQ YSey S1aAng o) sesnucg
- - - 9048 sasuadxa isyiQ

- -|piL [{2) S0L5 SJUEDLIGN] PUE ony JO 8N 10} UOISIADL]

896 651 -[(zeL zag) 6GF 8/E Z.8 68} ¥0.5 7170 30 RANC0SI() BLNOA 518ANG 0 $asnuog
ERTA 4 - ~|6¥8 ove £0.8 saako|diue 0] sadllenpe Jo asn Joj UOisiald
B6e Gl oog o) [CEIN €89 ZZ 181 L2 7045 SEBAOGWS O] S8SNLCY JEMUAUE J0 JuoWAEd 0] UDISIACI
04% 0Z - (60F £L) ¥l lL SEL EZ 1048 Aed UonEaea 10§ UDISIADI
Buipnioul

990 BYZ (8ol £2) (J¢1 98b) OpG 808 ZER 85T 0045 ey peiedilsg

Jeak
pauad ey} j0 S50XS pesiaray peziubooey 8 10 BujuuiBaq apon) wai|

pus au) e sous(eg

& 410 UBTIIIM

aly 1g soueleg

sapjl|igei] payeunsy L




(aweu )

€20Z Yiey 8t

{sunyeubs)

ABLBA INHY 1032311(]

- - - 1188

Buipryot
- - - OLES {210} — panssg
000 096 000 080 L Q00 089 L 0BG walusaite Ajaing
0000002 00088z € 000 598 ¢ 10BS aaeient yueg

Buipnious
000 0946 € 000 G8EE Q00 5Ea Q085 {ej0} ~ paniaday

610Z Jaqueda(] LE e SY 0Z0¢ Jaguiedasl Lg 1B Sy LEO7 aqueos(] LE e 8y apoy wajl
suonebiqo jo Ajlanaag g




ZZ0Z UoJew gl
{=isey jupd) [E ]

ABHEA INUY 1038110

. - - - LZBS Q20 64

- - - - LLBS 120z Jed
Buipriou

B - - - 0285 0ZoT 4oy
i - - - 0368 L20Z K04 (=101 — sueo| Aigjabpng

EES =ak FEELET FEELET
sy} 4o pus el Iy | sy Buunp preday | Buunp pansosy [jo Buuwifisg oy v
- - 5085 5)86SE JUSLIND-UOU Ul SJUSWSSAUL 104
- - 1GBS sainjipuadxa JuaIna jo4
Buipngou
- - 006G 2103 — pealenal spun) Agebpng
0Z0Z 404 V202 104 epos sy

DIE JUBLIUIBACD ‘5

pid



Noftes
to the financial statements of JSC RANBAXY for 2021

1. Information about the Company

1.1. Full name of the Company: Joint-Stock Company RANBAXY

1.2, Registered address: 27 Elektrozavodskaya ul., bidg. 8, room 14/1, Moscow, 107023, Russia.

1.3, Actual address: 27 Elektrozavodskaya ul., bldg. 8, room 14/1, Moscow, 107023, Russia.

1.4. Date of state registration: 20 May 2004; Primary State Registration Number: 1047796353846.

1.5. Authorized capital of the Company makes up RUB 163,000,000, Shareholder structure: SUN PHARMA
(NETHERLANDS) B.V. Private company limited by shares, registered with the Chamber of Commerce and
Industry of Amsterdam under No. 33254757: 99 percent of the authorized capital; Ranbaxy Holdings (UK) Ltd.,
private company limited by shares, registered at Company House of England and Wales under No. 3062051: 1
percent of the authorized capital. Shares in the authorized capital are fully paid. Quantity of placed securities:
163,000. The par value of each security is RUB 1,000.

The ultimate beneficiary of the Company is Dilip Shantilal Shanghvi, who is the head of the parent
company of SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED group of companies and owns more than
25% of shares of the said company.

1.6. The Company has no subsidiaries or affiliates.
1.7. Information about standalone subdivisions.

- On 19 December 2008, a standalone subdivision "Warehouse for wholesaling medicinal products" was
established and registered at its location (address: 2, let. B, B2 Dachnaya Street, Village of Davydovskoye,
Luchinskoye Rural Settlement, Istra District, Moscow Region, 143521, Russian Federation) with the
Inspectorate of the Federal Tax Service of Russia for the town of Istra, Moscow Region.

- On 02 April 2019 the location of the subdivision was changed (new address: Room VII, No. 63, 73,
86, 89, 90, 91, 92, 1 floor, bldg 16B, Block 0060339, Village of Davydovskoye, Istra District, Moscow Region,
143521, Russian Federation).

1.8. The main business activity of the Company is wholesaling of pharmaceutical products. License (current):
FS-99-02-007542 issued on 28 November 2019. Location covered by license FS5-99-02-007542: Room VII, No.
63, 73, 86, 89, 90, 91, 92, 1 floor, bldg 16B, Block 0060339, Village of Davydovskoye, Istra District, Moscow
Region, 143521, Russian Federation.

1.9. The Company is subject to mandatory audit in accordance with the criteria set forth in Federal Law No.
307-FZ “On Auditing Activity” dated 31 December 2008, which was entrusted to FBK, LL.C.

1.10. Members of the Company’s executive and control bodies:

As at 31/12/2020

Chairman of the Board of Directors:

Vivek Kapur



Members of the Board of Directors:
Kanniputur Kamalakkannan Kuppusvami
Kalpesh Shakh

Artur Valiev

Kharin P Mekhta

General Director of JSC Ranbaxy
Artur Valiev

Financial Direcior

Vivek Kapur

Chief Accountant

Ludmila Alekseevna Manuilova

As at 31/12/2021

Chairman of the Board of Directors:

Not appointed

Members of the Board of Directors:
Kanniputur Kamalakkannan Kuppusvami
Kalpesh Shakh

Artur Valiev

Kharin P Mekhta

General Director of JSC Ranbaxy
Artur Valiev

Director of the Finance Department
Arvind Abrol '
Chief Accountant

Ludmila Alekseevia Manuilova

As ar 03/02/2022

Chairman of the Board of Directors:
Sergey Lepetan

Members of the Board of Directors.
Rakesh Sinha

Viswanathan Sethuraman

Yulia Khivantseva

Artur Valiev



Sergey Lepetan

General Director of JSC Ranbaxy

Artur Valiev

Director of the Finance Department

Arvind Abrol

Chief Accoumtant

Ludmila Alekseevna Manuilova
An internal audit commission is not established.

2. Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.

2.1. Accounting policies for bookkeeping purposes.

The Company’s accounting records are maintained in accordance with the accounting legislation of the Russian
Federation. The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the current accounting and
reporting rules of the Russian Federation, Federal Law No. 402-FZ dated 6 December 2011 and accounting
regulations.

2.1.1. Accounting is done by the Company's Accounting Department, which is a separate structural subdivision
headed by the Chief Accountant.

2.1.2. In accounting, income is determined in accordance with the Accounting Regulations "Income of
Organizations" PBU 9/99 approved by Order of the Russian Ministry of Finance No. 32n dated 06 May 1999.
Sales are recorded in the accounting records as follows:

- Ordinary income is recorded on account 90.1.1 "Sales" when the products are shipped (transferred to
the buyer) and payment documents for the shipped goods are passed to the buyer, taking into account the time of
transfer of ownership. Ordinary income is income from activities that generate revenues accounting for more
than 5 percent of total sales;

- Remuneration under commission, engagement and agency agreements is recorded when the report of
the commission agent (nominee, agent) on sales of goods, works and services is approved by the principal.

Sales proceeds‘ derived from activities that are subject to value-added tax at different rates or are exempt from
value-added tax are recorded on subaccounts of account 90.1.1 “Sales”.

- Other income on account 91.01 “Other income” is recorded at the moment of the actual provisibn of
services.

2.1.3. In accounting, expenses are determined in accordance with the Accounting Regulations “Expenses of
Organizations” PBU 10/99. Expenses are recorded in the accounting records regardless of whether there is an
intention to generate revenue or other income and the form of expenses (cash, in kind, or other). Expenses are
recognized in the reporting period in which they were incurred, irrespective of when cash is paid.

2.1.4. Useful hives of fixed assets are determined based of the Classification of fixed assets included in
depreciation groups approved by Resolution of the Russian Government No. 1 dated 01 January 2002. Since 01
January 2017, the entity has applied the classifier of depreciation groups updated by Resolution of the Russian



Government dated 07 July 2016 No. 640. For new fixed assets the following depreciation periods are
established:

Office equipment 35 months
Vehicles 60 months
Other fixed assets 37 months
Machinery and equipment (except office equipment) 61 months
Production and organizational stock 61 months

2.1.5. Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method.

2.1.6. Low-value fixed assets with a cost not exceeding RUB 40,000, as well as books, brochures and other
publications are expensed as they are released for use.

2.1.7. Annual revaluation of fixed assets is not performed.

2.1.8. Deferred expenses posted to account 97 are classified in the financial statements as follows:

As advances made:

- Insurance expenses,
- Passes;
- Advertising.

As other current assets:

- Licensing expenses;

- Expenses on purchase of computer software and databases;
- Certification expenses;

- Fixed assets repair expenses;

- Expenses on customs services;

-Permits to employ foreign nationals.

2.1.9. Goods and materials are written off on FIFO basis.

2.1.10. Provisions for doubtful debts are made with due regard for expediency and in accordance with the
accounting regulations,

2.1.11. A provision for impairment of inventories is made at the end of the year taking into account the
remaining shelf life. The amount of the provision is calculated on a monthly basis. For goods with a remaining
shelf life of no more than 6 months, the provision is made at 100 percent. For goods not sold within more than
12 months, the provision is made at 100 percent. In addition, goods are measured on other factors in accordance
with FSBU 5/2019.

2.1.12. The Company makes provisions for estimated liabilities in accordance with PBU 8/2010.

2.1.13. The Company applies PBU 18/02. Income tax accrual ledgers are created using 1C: Manufacturing
Enterprise Management.

2.1.14. In accordance with the prescribed marketing policy, buyers benefit from awards (bonuses) and
discounts. The Company may pay (provide) to the buyer an award (bonus) due to compliance with the specific
terms of the agreement, in particular, volume of purchases and compliance with the payment deadlines. An
award (bonus) is paid (provided) to the buyer as money or writing off of indebtedness with regard to shipped

goods without changing the transaction price. Such awards (bonuses) are not a payment for services to promote
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goods or advertise them. Bonuses to customers for the current reporting period are reported within revenue.
Bonuses to customers for the previous reporting period are reported within other expenses.

2.1.15. Short-term deposits opened with banks for up to 3 months are reported in the Statement of Cash Flows
on a net basis.

2.1.16. In the Statement of Financial Results, the following other income and expenses are reported on a net

basis:

foreign exchange gains and losses;
gains and losses from sale and purchase of foreign currency;
allocations to provisions and income from reversed provisions;

expenses from creation and increase of estimated liabilities and income from decrease in their value

2.2. Accounting policies for tax purposes.

2.2.1. The Company determines its VAT tax base as products are shipped.

2.2.2. The Company uses the accrual method of income and expense recognition when caiculating corporate
income tax.

2.2.3. Purchased goods whose costs are deducted from sales proceeds are valued using the FIFO method.
Materials are written off on FIFO basis.

2.2.4. Useful lives of fixed asscts are determined based of the Classification of fixed assets included in
depreciation groups approved by Resolution of the Russian Government No. 1 dated 01 January 2002. The
period of use of acquired second-hand fixed assets is determined taking into account the period of actual use by
the previous owners.

2.2.5. Depreciable assets are depreciated using the straight-line method.

2.2.6. Depreciable assets include assets with a historical cost of more than RUB 100,000 and a useful life of
more than 12 months. Assets with a cost of less than RUB 100,000 are recorded within material expenses and
are expensed in the manner prescribed for indirect costs (as a lump sum). Low-value assets written off are kept
off-balance sheet until they are actually disposed of.

2.2.7. The Company creates a provision for vacation pay, a provision for payment of bonuses to employees
based on annual performance, and a provision for doubtful debts for tax purposes.

2.2.8. The Company creates tax accounting ledgers using specialized accounting software 1C: Manufacturing
Enterprise Management.

2.3. Changes in accounting policies applicable from 2021

2.3.1. The following changes were made to the accounting policies for bookkeeping purposes due to the
enactment of order No. 180n dated 15 November 2019 of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation “On
Approval of the Federal Accounting Standard FSBU 5/2019 “Inventories™ '

- inventories are accounted for in accordance with Federal Accounting Standard FSBU 5/2019 “Inventories™.



A provision for impairment of inventories is made at the end of the year taking into account the remaining shelf
life. The amount of the provision is calculated on a monthly basis. For goods not sold within more than 12
months, the provision is made at 100 percent.

The Company applies FSBU 5/2019 prospectively.
Adjustments of prior periods
In order to present comparatives in the Company’s financial statements, figures of the Statement of Financial

Results for 2020 were retrospectively restated. Adjustment of figures of the Statement of Financial Results for
2020 is shown in the table below:

Amount for 2020 before | Adjustment Amount for 2020 after

Statement of Financial Results linc adjustment, RUB000 amount adjustment, RUB 000

Noie

2340 “Other income™ 258,967 (110,098) 148,869 R ;
Foreign exchange gains

and losses, gains and
losses from sale and
purchase of foreign
currency, allocations to
provisions and income
from reversed provisions
and  expenses  from
creation and increase of
estimated liabilities and
income from deerease in
their value are presented
on a net basis

2350 “Other expenses™ (613,656) 110,098 (503,558)

3. Financial and Economic Activities of the Company.

3.1. Description of the Company's activities during the reporting year.
3.1.1. In 2021, revenues from sales of goods within operating activities totalled RUB 6,211,211 thousand
(excluding VAT), which makes up 99.74 percent of total sales; other income from sales of fixed assets
amounted to RUB 16,285 thousand (excluding VAT), which accounts for 0.26 percent of total sales. Gross
operating profit was RUB 2,289,363 thousand. Revenue is shown net of bonuses to buyers in the amount of
RUB 411,208 thousand.
In 2020, revenues from sales of goods within operating activities totalled RUB 5,390,338 thousand (excluding
VAT), which makes up 99.78 percent of total sales; other income from sales of fixed assets amounted to RUB
11,694 thousand (excluding VAT), which accounts for 0.22 percent of total sales. Gross operating profit was
RURB 1,674,749 thousand. Revenue is shown taking into account bonuses to buyers in the amount of RUB
379,901 thousand.
The Company does not carry out any other types of activities.
3.1.2. In 2021, the Company generated RUB 570,492 thousand in profit from sales versus RUB 130,713
thousand in 2020.




The increase in profit is attributable to the following factors:

- An increase in revenues by RUB 820,873 thousand (15.23%)

- An increase in cost by RUB 206,259 thousand (5.55%)

- An increase in selling expenses by RUB 174,834 thousand (11.32%)

3.1.3. The structure of selling expenses is as follows:

The structure of selling expenses

Type of expenses 2021 2026 Change

Payroll 789,536 684,712 104,824
Allocations to funds 200,989 171,445 29,544
Advertising 276,476 241,526 34,950
Marketing 21,804 28,674 (6.870)
Processing of goods 44710 53,200 (8,491)
Certification 5,051 4,253 798
Maintenance and repair of motor vehicles 23,732 32,449 (8,717)
Car leasing 45,806 45,965 {159)
Insurance 31,153 30,433 720
Rent 38,456 32,076 6,379
Depreciation 10,370 7,764 2,605
Travel expenses 39,181 23,668 15,513
Hospitality expenses 806 200 607
Audit 2,130 2,154 (24)
Software products 21,024 15,312 5,712
Other material costs 10,235 7,015 3,220
Provision for vacation pay 71,744 60,274 2,471
Provision for payment of annnal bonuses to employees 22.683 29,894 (7,211)
Provision for payment of quarterly bonuses to employees (8,481) 4,968 (13,449)
Other expenses 71,465 59,053 12,411
Total : 1,718,871 1,544,036 174,834

In 2021, payroll, provisions and allocations to funds account for the largest share of the Company’s selling
expenses (57.63 percent), with advertising expenses being another major contributor (16.08 percent). In 2020,
payroll, provisions and allocations to funds account for the largest share of the Company’s selling expenses
(55.45 percent), with advertising expenses being another major contributor (15.64 percent). Compared to the
previous year, payroll expenses and advertising expenses increased in 2021. Advertisements were placed on TV,
in printed press and in the Internet.

The Company increased its staffing in 2021. The average number of employees in 2021 was 465 versus 456 in
2020, representing a 1.97 percent increase (by 9 persons).

3.1.4. The Company's accounts receivable from customers and buyers as at 31 December 2021 amounted to
RUB 3,138,356 thousand.

Provision for doubtful receivables from customers and buyers

=:1.:x\f~.



RUB’000

At the
beginning of | Creation of Reversal of At the end of
Period the period provision Use of provision provision the period
for 2021 105,530 - - - 105,530
for 2020 105,276 254 - - 105,530

At the end of 2021, the Company created a provision for doubtful debts for the following organizations:
- For accounts receivable from buyers:
e ZAO Genesis in the amount of RUB 7,764,525.34 (seven million seven hundred sixty four thousand
five hundred twenty five rubles and 34 kopecks).
e Rosta JSC in the amount of RUB 97,765,726.09 (ninety seven million seven hundred sixty five
thousand seven hundred twenty six rubles and 9 kopecks).

In 2012,proceedings were initiated in the Arbitration Court of St. Petersburg and Leningrad Region
against ZAO Genesis. The proceedings are completed, a settlement agreement has been approved, according to
which JSC RANBAXY will receive RUB 7,764,525.34 from ZAO Genesis during the period from 2022 fo 2026
(Ruling of the Arbitration Court of St. Petersburg and Leningrad Region dated 21 February 2012 in case No.
AS56-55543/2008). The ruling has entered into force.

On 04 February 2021, the Arbitration Court of Moscow Region delivered a decision in case No. A41-
79022/2017 and declared Rosta JSC insolvent (bankrupt). The bankruptcy proceedings were extended until 31
July 2021.

On 16 August 2021, the Arbitration Court of Moscow Region delivered a decision in case No. A41-
79022/2017 and declared Rosta JSC insolvent (bankrupt). The bankruptcy proceedings were extended until 31
January 2022,

On 20 January 2022, the Arbitration Court of Moscow Region delivered a decision in case No. A41-
79022/2017 and declared Rosta JSC insolvent (bankrupt). The bankruptcy proceedings were extended until 31
July 2022,

Provision for doubtful receivables from suppliers (advances made)

RUB*000
At the
beginning of | Creation of Reversal of At the end of
Period the period provision Use of provision provision the period
for 2021 1,048 - - 1,048
for 2020 1,048 - - - 1,048

- For accounts receivable from suppliers:
e« ZAO TK Novatorrus-Invest in the amount of RUB 1,048,078.94 (one million forty eight thousand
seventy eight rubles and 94 kopecks).
The Company’s accounts payable to suppliers and contractors as at 31 December 2021 totalled RUB
3,843,341 thousand. Accounts payable to suppliers increased by 0.7 percent (RUB 25,373 thousand) compared

to the previous year. In 2020, accounts payable amounted to RUB 3,817,968 thousand. The accounts payable
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increased, mostly, to main suppliers of pharmaceutical products due to outstanding payments for supplied
goods.

The key suppliers of JSC RANBAXY in 2021 were SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD
(India),SC TERAPIA SA (Romania). Accounts payable to SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD
(India) amounted to RUB 3,562,327 thousand (92.69 percent of total payables), to SC TERAPIA SA (Romania)
— RUB 266,813 thousand (6.94 percent of total payables)).

3.1.5. In 2021, interest in the amount of RUB 5,718 thousand was accrued and interest in the amount of RUB
8,574 thousand was paid on the short-term loan received in 2013 from private company limited by shares SUN
PHARMA (NETHERLANDS) B.V. (until 21 July 2017 — Ranbaxy (Netherlands) B.V.). In 2020, interest in
the amount of RUB 15,691 thousand was accrued and interest in the amount of RUB 17,288 thousand was paid.
3.1.6. In 2021, the Company received income in the form of interest. Income in the form of interest on short-
term bank deposits amounted to RUB 10,144 thousand. Income in the form of interest on balances of bank
accounts amounted to RUB 2,565 thousand. Income in the form of interest received on loans granted amounted
to RUB 37,877 thousand.

As at 31 December 2021, the funds placed on short-term deposits amounted to RUB 150,000 thousand at
Sberbank OJSC with the maturity in January 2022.

In 2020, the Company received income in the form of interest. Income in the form of interest on short-term bank
deposits amounted to RUB 23,561 thousand. Income in the form of interest on balances of bank accounts
amounted to RUB 2,304 thousand. Income in the form of interest received on loans granted amounted to RUB
6,515 thousand.

As at 31 December 2020, the funds placed on short-term deposits amounted to RUB 525,000 thousand at
Sberbank OJSC with the maturity in January 2021.

3.1.7. Other income and expenses of the Company recorded in lines 2340 and 2350 of the Statement of

Financial Resulis for 2021 were as follows:

Other income Other expenses

Description (RUB’000) {RUB’0040)

Exchange differences 5,676 -
Income (expenses) related to sale (purchase) of foreign currency - (159)
Provision for impairment of inventory - (208,330)
Provision for returned goods - (230)
Destruction of pharmaceutical products - {10,636)
Bonuses from suppliers 82,329 -
Insurance indemnity / expenses for insured events 3,644 -
Write-off of accounts receivable / payable 5,000 (60)
Sales and write-offs of fixed assets 16,285 37
Bank services - (651)
Other 16,982 (32,940)
Reversal of provision for payment of annual bonuses to employees 10,800 -
Total 146,717 (253,043)

e,



Other income and expenses of the Company recorded in lines 2340

Results for 2020 were as follows:

and 2350 of the Statement of Financial

Other income Other expenses

Description (RUB’000) (RUB’600)

Exchange differences - (65,394)
Provision for impairment of inventory - (412,879)
Provision for doubtful debts - (255)
Provision for returned goods - (236)
Destruction of pharmaceutical products - (12,319
Bonuses from suppliers 115,604 -
Ponuses to customers - {6,007)
Insurance indemmity / expenses for insured events 713 -
Write-off of accounts receivable / payable 258 (22)
Sales and write-offs of fixed assets 11,614 (262}
Bank services - (538)
Other 7,249 (5,646)
Reversal of provision for payment of annual bonuses to employees 13,430 -
Total 148,869 (303,558)

3.1.8. According to the accounting data, in 2021 the Company earned a profit before tax of RUB 503,035
thousand; according to the tax accounting data, the Company received a profit of RUB 193,053 thousand.
Current income tax amounted to RUB 38,611 thousand.

Permanent differences totalled RUB 43,858 thousand in 2021, resulting in a permanent tax benefit / expense of
RUB 8,771 thousand. The bulk of this amount consisted of non-deductible expenses: medical insurance of
employees’ family members, provision for returned goods, depreciation, regulated expenses, expenses for goods
destruction and other non-deductible expenses.

Deferred income tax in 2021 amounted to RUB 70,768 thousand. This amount was basically composed
of a temporary difference on other expenses recorded as estimated liabilities. Relevant expenses will be
recorded in the period of registration of source documents. For financial accounting purposes the amount of
customs charges and duties are taken into account in the value of goods, and for tax accounting purposes they
are written off to costs as a lump sum.

According to the accounting data, in 2020 the Company made a loss before tax of RUB 207,287
thousand; according to the tax accounting data, the Company received a profit of RUB 154,166 thousand.
Current income tax amounted to RUB 30,833 thousand. ‘

Permanent differences tolalled RUB 36,910 thousand in 2020, resulting in a permanent tax benefit /
expense of RUB 7,382 thousand. The bulk of this amount consisted of non-deductible expenses: medical
insurance of employees’ family members, provision for returned goods, depreciation, regulated expenses,
expenses for goods destruction and other non-deductible expenses.

Deferred income tax in 2020 amounted to RUB 64,908 thousand. This amount was basically composed
of a temporary difference on other expenses recorded as estimated liabilities. Relevant expenses will be
recorded in the period of registration of source documents. For financial accounting purposes the amount of
customs charges and duties are taken into account in the value of goods, and for tax accounting purposes they
are written off to costs as a lump sum.
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Corporate income tax

Item For 2021 For 2020
Profit (loss) before {ax according 1o the accounting data 503,035 (207.287)
including;
Profit taxable at 20%* 503,035 (207,287)
Provisional income tax expense (benefit) 100,607 (41,457
Permanent tax expense {benefit) 8,771 7,382
Income tax expense (benefit) 109,378 (34,075)
Deferred income tax, including 70,768 (64,908)
Current income tax (current tax loss)
38,610 30,833
3.1.9. The Company has not issued any guarantees to third parties.
4. Social Indicators
RUB’000
Num
ber Indicator 2021 2020
I Average number of employees 465 456
2 Accrued wages 789,536 684,712
Provisions for vacation pay and payment of quarterly and year-end
3 bonuses 85,947 104,136
Amount of accrized contributions, RUB’000 200,989 171,445
5. Information about the Company’s Equity (RUB’000)
5.1, Indicators
Num
her Indicator 2021 2020
1 Authorized capital 163,000 163,000
2 Reserve capital 40,750 40,750
3 Retained earnings 1,206,200 812,543

5.1.1. The Company has not paid any dividends and has not repurchased shares.
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6. Reference Dafa

6.1, Caleulation of the Company’s net assets (RUB000)

At the
beginning of | At the end of
Balance sheet reporting reporting
Narrative line code year vear
1. Assets
1. | Intangible assets 1110 14,829 8,835
2. Fixed agsets 1150 7,433 13,867
3. | Other non-current assets 1190 - -
4, | Income-bearing investments into tangible assets 1160 - -
5. | Long-term and short-term financial investments 1170+1240 1,075,000 1,185,000
1120+1130+1140
6. | Other non-current assets +1180 143,007 65,516
7. | Inventories 1216 1,184,707 1,039,399
8.1 Input value-added tax 1220 197 1,138
9. i Accounts receivable 1230 3,026,081 3,273,413
10, Cash 1250 200,662 54,193
11.| Other current assets 1260 5,961 3,135
Total assets taken into account in the calculation (sum of
12. | items 1-11) 5,657 878 5,644 496
11. Equity and liabilities
13. | Long-term liabilities under loans and credits 1410 433 885 -
14. | Other long-term liabilities 1420+1450 13,531 6,807
15,1 Short-term liabilities under loans and credits 1510 3,185 -
16. | Accounts payable 1520 3,932,152 3,979,673
17, Estimated liabilities 1540 258,832 248,066
18, | Other short-term liabilities 1550 - -
Total equity and Habilities taken into account in the
19. | calculation (sum of items 13-18) 4,641,585 4,234,546
Net asset value of the company (total assets taken into
account in the caleulation (item 12) less fotal equity and
20. | liabilities taken into account in the calculation (ifem 19)) 1,016,293 1,409,950
6.1.1. Intangible assets
See Section 1. Notes to the Balance Sheet and Statement of Financial Results in table form.
6.1.2. Fixed assets
See Section 2. Notes to the Balance Sheet and Statement of Financial Results in table form.
6.1.3. Financial investments
See Section 3. Notes to the Balance Sheet and Statement of Financial Results in table form.
Information about the existence and movements of financial investments is presented below:
RUB’000
No Loan amount
Borrower Loan term Annual interest rate As at As at As at
31/12/2021 31/12/2020 31/12/2019
j | FISC Biosintez 31/122024 |  Refinancing rate x 0.75 | 1,005,000 550,000 -
2 ]S‘:E%Pilmnaceutlcal Industrics 07/07/2022 Refinancing rate x 1.25 30,000 - -
Fotal: 1,035,000 550,000 -
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X , as at 31/12/2021 as at 31/12/2020 as at 31/12/2019
No Financial T
invesiment erm Rate Amount Term Rate Amount Term Rate Amount
(days) (days) (days)

Short-term o " . o
1 deposit 13 7.50% 150,000 13 3.80% 525,000 21 5.65% 125,000

Short-term a,
2 deposit - 8 4.70% 125,000
3 | Short-ierm deposit %0 | 1.83% 31,022

in foreign currency
TOTAL 150,000 525,600 281,022

Interest of RUB 6,514 thousand was accrued in 2020 on a loan granted to PJSC Biosintez as at 31 December
2020. _

In 2021, a loan granted to PYSC Biosintez was repaid in the amount of RUB 500,000 thousand. Interest of RUB
36,620 thousand was accrued in 2021 on a loan granted to PISC Biosintez. Interest of RUB 1,257 thousand was
accrued in 2021 on a loan granted to Sun Pharmaceutical Industries LLC.

The amount of interest accumulated and not received on loans granted is shown within shorf-term accounts
receivable.

Within short-term accounts receivable in line 1230 of the Balance Sheet, interest accrued on financial
investments amounted to RUB 9,637 thousand as at 31 December 2021, RUB 6,514 thousand as at 31
December 2020, RUB 0.00 thousand as at 31 December 2019.

In 2022, under a Debt Forgiveness Agreement a debt of RUB 30 million was written off under a loan agreement
with Sun Pharmaceutical Industries LLC (group company).

6.1.4. Deferred tax assets

According to the data from the Balance Sheet, deferred tax assets amounted to RUB 65,516 thousand as at 31
December 2021, RUB 143,007 thousand as at 31 December 2020 and RUB 81,030 thousand as at 31 December
2019.

6.1.5. Inventories

See Section 4. Notes to the Balance Sheet and Statement of Financial Results in table form.

6.1.6. Value-added tax

According to the data from the Balance Sheet, value-added tax not accepted for deduction due to non-provision
of VAT invoices by the service providers amounted to RUB 1,138 thousand as at 31 December 2021, RUB 197
thousand as at 31 December 2020 and RUB 46,397 thousand as at 31 December 2019.

6.1.7 Accounts recetvable

See Section 5. Notes to the Balance Sheet and Statement of Financial Results in table form.

6.1.8. Financial investments (excluding cash equivalents)

See Section 3. Notes to the Balance Sheet and Statement of Financial Results in table form.

6.1.9. Cash and cash equivalents

According to the data from the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021, they amounted to RUB 54,193 thousand,
including: cash on hand — RUB 14 thousand, settlement accounts -— RUB 54,179 thousand; as at 31 December
2020 they amounted to RUB 200,662 thousand, including: cash on hand — RUB 10 thousand, settlement
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accounts — RUB 200,653 thousand; as at 31 December 2019 they amounted to RUB 78,999 thousand,
incloding: cash on hand —— RUB 16 thousand, settlement accounts — RUB 78,983 thousand.
6.1.10. Other current assets
According to the data from the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021, they amounted to RUB 3,135 thousand,
as at 31 December 2020 — RUB 5,961 thousand; as at 31 December 2019 — RUB 3,513 thousand.
6.1.11. Borrowings (long-term liabilities)
See Section 5. Notes to the Balance Sheet and Statement of Financial Results in table form.
6.1.12, Deferred tax liability
According to the data from the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021, they amounted to RUB 6,807 thousand,
as at 31 December 2020 — RUB 13,531 thousand; as at 31 December 2019 — RUB 16,462 thousand.
6.1.13. Borrowings (short-term liabilities)
See Section 5. Notes to the Balance Sheet and Statement of Financial Results in table form.
6.1.14. Accounts payable
See Section 5. Notes to the Balance Sheet and Statement of Financial Results in table form.
6.1.15. Estimated liabilities
See Section 7. Notes to the Balance Sheet and Statement of Financial Results in table form.

6.2. Information on leased fixed assets.
6.2.1 Leased premises.
As at 31/12/2021, JSC RANBAXY did not have its own premises.
In 2020, lease contracts with the following organizations were in effect:
« LE FORTAKO LIMITED in Moscow. Agreement w/o No. dated 15 May 2018 for 1,073.7 sq.m. (the
monthly fee is RUB 2,108,643.59, including VAT). Pursuant to clause 9.3.1 of the Agreement dated 15 May
2018 for 1,073.7 sq.m. the monthly fee was increased starting from 15 June 2020 and amounted to RUB
2.265,304.49, including VAT. Additional Agreement 1 dated 11 June 2021 (the monthly fee was reduced from
15 June 2021 (for rent, parking fee remained the same) and amounted to RUB 2,963,324.08, including VAT).
Date of the agreement termination is 14 June 2023, '
o Flarida Gazzalievna Vakarina (individual) for 50.7 sq. m — an office in the city of Yekaterinburg
Agreement No. 01-2020 dated 01 June 2020 (the monthly fee is RUB 35,000 without VAT). Date of the
agreement termination is 30 April 2021. The agreement was terminated early — the termination agreement is
dated 20 February 2021
s Q00 Inform-Future for 80.7 sq. m, an office, and for 3.7 sq. m, a utility room in St. Petersburg. Additional
Agreement 2 dated 27 August 2020 (the monthly fee is RUB 116,700.98 with VAT and without VAT starting
from January 2021).
Date of the agreement termination is 30 September 2021.
» 000 Ecor-Plus changed its owner from 01 June 2021 (formerly OOO Inform-Future) for 80.7 sq. m, an
office, and for 3.7 sq. m, a utility room in St. Petersburg (the monthly fee is RUB 102,113.24, including VAT,
from June 2021). Agreement 41/44/B/2021 dated 01 October 2021 (the monthly fee is RUB 116,532.00,

including VAT). Date of the agreement termination is 31 August 2022.
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» Federation of Trade Unions of Rostov Region for 42.24 sq. m — an office in Rostov-on-Don. Additional
Agreement | dated 16 September 2020 to Agreement No. 11/20 dated 01 November 2019 (the monthly fee is
RUB 28,723.20 without VAT). Date of the agreement termination is 31 August 2021. The agreement was
terminated early — the termination agreement is dated 26 April 2021

¢ 000 Danem — a warehouse in Moscow Region. Agreement No, JI-CA-18/18 dated 15 October 2018 for
358.7 sq.m. (the monthly fee is RUB 289,158, including VAT). The Agreement is valid for 11 months.
Additional Agreement 6 dated 21 September 2020 for 358.7 sq.m. (the monthly fee is RUB 289,158, including
VAT). Date of the agreement termination is 14 July 2021. Additional Agreement 7 dated 08 October 2021 for
358.7 sq.m. (the monthly fee is RUB 289,158, including VAT). Date of the agreement termination is 14 June
2022

« IE Zueva LV. for.48.3 sq. m — lease of an office in the city of Krasnodar. Agreement No. 20 dated 01 May
2020 (the monthly fee is RUB 29,000.00 without VAT). Date of the agreement termination is 31 March 2021.
The agreement was terminated early - the termination agreement is dated 01 March 2021.

o IE Sachli K.L for 51.3 sq.m. — lease of an office in the city of Krasnodar. Agreement dated 01 March
2021 (the monthly fee is RUB 31,000.00 without VAT). Date of the agreement termination is 01 February 2022.
+ LLC Development Department for 50.3 sq. m. — an office in the city of Novosibirsk. Agreement No. 12/06-
2020 dated 01 June 2020 (the monthly fee is RUB 42,755.00 without VAT). Date of the agreement termination
is 30 April 2021. Agreement No. 12/05-2021 dated 30 April 2021 (the monthly fee is RUB 42,755.00 without
VAT). Date of the agreement termination is 31 May 2022,

« TE Yarovoy for 25.7 sq.m. — an office in the city of Vladivostok. Agreement No. bl 2-9 dated 01 October
2017 (the monthly fee is RUB 25,700.00 without VAT). Additional Agreement dated 01 July 2020. Date of the
agreement termination is 31 May 2021. The agreement was terminated early — the termination agreement is
dated 04 March 2021.

e Valentina Olegovna Chesnokova (individual) for 46.58 sq. m — an office in the city of Nizhny Novgorod.
Additional Agreement 1 dated 01 November 2020 to Agreement No. I dated 01 December 2019 (the monthly
fee is RUB 26,500.00 without VAT). Date of the agreement termination is 30 September 2021. Additional
Agreement dated 24 August 2021 to Agreement No. 1 dated 01 December 2019 (the monthly fee is RUB
26,500.00 without VAT). Date of the agreement termination is 31 August 2022.

6.2.2 Movable property
Movable property received under a lease agreement is recognized on off-balance account 001 “Leased

fixed assets”- according to the estimation specified in the lease agreement.
6.3. Additional information about the goods rejection procedure.

Goods that are subject to write-off and destruction are identified according to the following criteria:
- expiration of shelf life;
- non-compliance with regulatory requirements;
- loss of marketability, etc.

The Company has entered into contracts for destruction of rejected goods with the following companies:
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OO0 National Ecological Company: contract for pharmaceutical waste collection and disposal services No. ®-
163/19 dated 28 February 2019 (License No. (76)- 861-CTB/I1 issued on 4 December 2018) with an automatic

renewal clause.

6.4. Information about the Company’s expenses on wages, vacation pay and payment of bonuses to employees.

Structure of the accrued and paid amounts in favour of the Company’s employees in 2021

2021, 2020,
in 2021, in 2020,
Subdivision RUB’000 % RUB’000 Yo
Head Office (Moscow) 860,135!  99.62%| 779,549 99.57%
Standalone subdivision Warehouse for wholesaling medical products
in Istra District 3,308 0.38% 3,389 0.43%
Total 863,443 100%| 782938 100%

As at the end of 2021, the liabilities for payment of wages were discharged in full.

6.5. Information about the Company’s future expenses on vacation pay and bonus payments to employees

The employees’ accrued and unused vacations as at 31/12/2021, including insurance contributions:

RUB 20,470 thousand; bonuses based on 2021 results, including insurance contributions: RUB 15,298
thousand.

6.6. Notes to the Balance Sheet

6.6.1. The accounts receivable recorded in balance sheet line 1230 are short-term and amount to RUB 3,273,413
thousand. There are no long-term accounts receivable. When preparing the balance sheet, the Company
additionally discloses receivables relating to settlements with accountable persons and other settlements with
employees; for comparison purposes, the balance sheet shows settlements as at 31/12/2020 and 31/12/2019.
6.6.2 Breakdown of accounts receivable (line 1230), RUB 000

Type 2021 2020

Settlements on advances issued 29,111 31,282
Settlements with buyers and customers 3,138,356 2,898,706
Settiements with the budget (individual income tax) 6 -
Settlements with the budget (advance income taxes) 20,487 -
Other taxes and levies _ - -
Payments to extra-budgetary funds - 7,191
Settlements with employees on payroil 11 2
Advances to employees 4,256 3,407
Settiements with employees on loans issued 4,500 7,902

Insurance settlements - -

Setilements of claims - .
Settlements with other debtors 76,685 77,590

TOTAL 3,273,413 3,026,080

6.7. Notes lo the Statement of Financial Results

6.7.1. Information on the expenses from ordinary activities.
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The expenses from ordinary activities (production cost and selling expenses) reported in the Statement of
Financial Results for 2021 amounted to RUB 5,640,718 thousand. The cost of goods sold was RUB 3,921,848
thousand (including suppliers’ bonuses of RUB 99,339 thousand). Selling expenses amounted to RUB
1,718,871 thousand.

The expenses from ordinary activities (production cost and selling expenses) reported in the Statement of
Financial Results for 2020 amounted to RUB 5,259,625 thousand. The cost of goods sold was RUB 3,715,589
thousand (inchiding suppliers’ bonuses of RUB 41,629 thousand). Selling expenses amounted to RUB

1,544,036 thousand.
6.8. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
6.8.1, Other receipts from operating activities (line 4119), RUB’000

2021

Other receipts 2020
Refund of taxes and levies from the budget 40,878 26,737
Value-added tax - 56,276
Insurance indemnity 3,644 713
Other refunds 8,891 3,050
Total 53,413 36,776

6.8.2. Other payments within operating activities (line 4129), RUB 000

QOther payments 2021 2020
Customs payments 130,119 112,355
Value-added tax 9,022 -
Payment for insurance 29,891 30,603
Advances to employees 37,417 31,886
Interest-free loans to employees 7,056 12,243
Other payments 24,163 8,310
Total 237,668 195,397

In 2021, the Company applied the method of accounting for customs payments to report cash flows: payment of
VAT to the customs is shown as a separate item of cash flows and reduces the VAT balance in the Statement of
Cash Flows, which is recorded within other receipts in line 4119.

In 2021, the Company received advance payments from buyers of goods in the amount of RUB 979,024
thousand, in 2020 — in the amount of RUB 181,342 thousand. In the Statement of Cash Flows, the advance
payments received are shown in line 4111 Receipts, including from sale of goods, works and services.

In 2021, the Company made advance payments to suppliers of goods, works and services in the amount of RUB
460,741 thousand, in 2020 — in the amount of RUB 440,338 thousand. In the Statement of Cash Flows, the
advance payments made are shown in line 4121 Payments, including to suppliers (contractors) for materials,
supplies, goods, services.

6.9. Other data

6.9.1. Tax audits and decisions

There were no tax audits in 2021.

6.9.2. Events after the balance sheet date
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In February 2022, the economic situation in the Russian Federation was adversely affected by the escalated
geopolitical conflict in Ukraine and ongoing international sanctions against certain Russian entities and citizens.
These factors caused a substantially increased instability in financial markets, frequent and significant price
changes, weakening of the ruble against key world currencies, volatility of demand and prices in international
oil and gas markets.

An extended international list of sanctions restricted access of certain entities to international financial markets
for borrowing purposes. The Central Bank of the Russian Federation hiked its key rate to 20%, which may also
affect the possibility to borrow in the internal market.

The expected further extension of the list of sanctions, barring some Russian banks from SWIFT, new
restrictions for the Bank of Russia and other entities, airspace closure for Russian airlines by quite a few
countries may have a significant impact on the economic situation in the Russian Federation in the future, which
is hard to forecast.

Nevertheless, the current political and economic situation does not cast any doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern during at least 12 months after the reporting date. Measures taken by the
Company’s management allow the Company to ensure uninterrupted functioning and fulfil obligations towards
its counterparties.

FSBU 6/2020 “Fixed Assets”, FSBU 25/2018 “Lease Accounting” and FSBU 26/2020 “Capital Investments”

are applied starting from the financial statements for 2022 prospectively.

6.9.3. Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

In accordance with PBU 8/2010, the Company made the following provisions for future expenses as at as at 31
December 2021:

- For payment of annual bonuses to staff in the amount of RUB 15,298 thousand,

- For payment of quarterly bonuses to staff in the amount of RUB 10,625 thousand,

- A provision for payment of forthcoming vacations in the amount of RUB 20,470 thousand,

- A provision for returned goods in the amount of RUB 806 thousand,

- A provision for use of advances to employees in the amount of RUB 4,256 thousand,

- For future expenses for providing bonuses to buyers for 2021 in the amount of RUB 196,611 thousand. The
estimated liability for future expenses for awarding bonuses to buyers was established on the basis of a
monetary valuation by the Company's management.

The Company has no contingent assets or liabilities.

In accordance with PBU 8/2010, the Company made the following provisions for future expenses as at as at 31
December 2020:

- For payment of annual bonuses to staff in the amount of RUB 21,181 thousand,

- For payment of quarterly bonuses to staff in the amount of RUB 19,107 thousand,

- A provision for payment of forthcoming vacations in the amount of RUB 22,135 thousand,

- A provision for returned goods in the amount of RUB 576 thousand,

- A provision for use of advances to employees in the amount of RUB 3,407 thousand,
18



- For future expenses for providing bonuses to buyers for 2020 in the amount of RUB 192,426 thousand. The
estimated liability for future expenses for awarding bonuses to buyers was established on the basis of a
monetary valuation by the Company's management.

The Company has no contingent assets or liabilities.

6.9.4. Related party transactions
JSC RANBAXY is a part of SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED group of comparnies

(hereinafter the “Sun Pharma™)

List of related parties, with which business transactions are conducted

SUN PHARMA (NETHERLANDS) B.V. | Sharcholder (99%)

(Private company limited by shares) Company from Sun Pharma group.

Ranbaxy Holdings (UK) Ltd. Shareholder {1%)
Company from Sun Pharma group.

BIOSINTEZ PJSC Company from Sun Pharma group.

Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd. Founder of the main shareholder, parent company
of Sun Pharma group of companies.

SC TERAPIA SA (Romania) Company from Sun Pharma group.

Sun Pharmaceutical Industries LI.C Company from Sun Pharma group.

The full list of related parties as at 31 March 2021 is presented in the consolidated financial statements
of the group on the company’s website

https://sunpharma.com/investors-annual-reports-presentations/

https://sunpharma.com/wo-content/uploads/2021/08/SPIL-AR-2020-21-Consolidated-Financial- pdf

There were no material changes in the group structure as at 31  December 2021,

Transactions with related parties during the reporting period:

Type of Applied pricing Volume of Volume of
Related parties Type of relation tmn); I; ctions methods for each | transactions in | transactions in
type of transactions 2021 2020

SUN Other refated party | Purchase of goods | According to the RUB RUB
PHARMACEUTICAL (spuaf}?ﬁaiﬁizﬁﬂfaﬁ agreement {market 3,217,132 2,133,737
INDU)STR.IES LTD ndustries group) price) thousand thousand
(India
SUN Other related Paﬂyf Compensation for | According to the RUB174,668 | RUB 149,278
PHARMACEUTICAL S‘ﬁ?ﬁﬂ;‘;gﬁ:ﬂl discount given to | agreement thousand thousand
aI;U)STRHES LTD Industies group) the buyer

14
SC TERAPIA SA Other reia;fd pasrty (# | Purchase of goods | According to the RUB 713,949 | RUB 675,019
(Romania) hatsen Mt agreement (market thousand thousand

Industries group) price)
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SC TERAPIA SA Other Tda;:d PE'S“Y {a { Compensation due | According to the . RUB 7,794
. COmparn ¢m sun
(Romania) Pha.r[r)n ageuﬁc Al to recall of a agreement thousand
Industries group) pharmaceutical
product
Sun Pharmaceutical ~ [Other ““*lﬂg‘*d party (2 | Syblease According to the RUB 360 RUB 360
Industries LL.C ;;ﬁgﬁaggeuggls“" agreement agreement thousand thousand
Industries group)
Sun Pharmaceutical ~ [Other fﬁ’ﬂg’d Pf;‘"ty (¢ |Loan agreement |Issued loan RUB 30,000 -
N company from Sun
Industries LLC Pharmacoutical thousand
Industries group)
Sup Pharmaceutical Other femgd PaSJTY (@ | Accrual of interest | According to the RUB 1,257 .
Industries LLC ;zgﬁnagfeugil " | under the short- agreement thousand
Industries group) term loan
agreement
Representative office of Other related Parg Agency agreement | According to the RUB 1,689 RUB 1,687
Sun Ph'annaf:el_itical [}1’; Er:s:;::;i)? Sllflf agreement thousand thousand
Illdustrles LIm]ted Pharmacentical
Industries group in
Russia)
Sun Pharma Principal shareholder | Repayment of a USD 5,873 -
(Netherlands) B.V. 99 percent of stocks) | oh it term / long- thousand
Private company term loan
limited by shares RUB 455,275
thousand
Sun Pharma erincipal Sharfeholdkesr Accrual of interest |3M Libor + 150 bp UsD 120 USD 216
{(Netherlands) B.V. 99 percent of stocks) |\ Jer the short- p.a. thonsand thousand
Private company term loan
limited by shares agreement RUB 9,159 RUB 15,691
thousand thousand
PISC Biosintez Other fclatﬁed Pgﬁy (@ | Loan agreement | Issued loan RUR 955,000 RUB 550,000
;?jmpany o Sun thousand thousand
armacentical
Industries group)
PISC Biosintez [ther mlagid PZ“Y @ |Loan agreement | Repayment of the RUB 500,000 .
company from Sun .
S harmaceutical issued loan thousand
industries group)
PJSC Biosintez Other fela;fd ngt}’ (@ | Accrual of interest | According to the RUB 36,620 RURB 6,514
;ﬂ?&aﬁf@uggl ¥ | under the short- agreement thousand thousand
[ndustries group) | term loan
agreement
PISC Biosintez Other related party (2 | Under contracts | According to the RUB 11 RUB 43
;(}’]r;ri?;’gcggglsun for the sale of agreement thousand thousand
Industries group) goods, works,
services
PISC Biosintez Other related party (2 | Goods sale and | According to the RUB 19,573 RUB 401
;i[;ﬁla:é'eig&sm purchase agreement thousand thousand
industries group) agreement
PISC Biosintez Other “-"agd Pf;fty @ | Agreement (for | According to the RUB 1,538 RUB 401
;iﬁ‘:::geug;gl ¥ contract ' agreement thousand thousand
ndustries group) manufacturing)
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Accounts receivable and payable to related parties of the Company

as at 31 December 2021 were as follows:

Amount of accounts
receivable (payable)

Amount of accounts
receivable (payable)

Related party
SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES

Type of relation

Other related party (parent company
of Sun Pharmaceutical Industries

2021 (RUB’000) 2020 (RUB’000)

LTD (India) aroup) (3,562,327) (3,391,765)

Other related party {a company from
. Sun Ph tical Industri

SC TERAPIA SA (Romania) o) e (266,813) (410,528)

IDther related party (a company from
.. Sun Pharmacentical Industries

PISC Biosintez roup) (1,006) -

PJSC Biosintez (loans granted and related g’u‘ﬁ“;gjﬁifmﬁ HC;IE&?SY from

interest) olp} 1,0}3,381 556,514

Other related party (a company from
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries
igroup) - 30
Other related party (a company from
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries

Sun Pharmaceutical Industries LLC

Sun Pharmaceutical Industries LLC (loans

granted and related interest) aroup) 31,257 -
Sun Pharma (Netherlands) B.V. Private PT"“}‘;"PE“ shareholder (99 percent of
company limited by shares (for received loans stocks)
and loan interest) - {437,070)
Cash flows with related parties:
Amount in Amount in
Related parties Type of relation Type of transactions 2021 2020
p yp
Other relatefdspa.rtgh(pamnt - RUB RUR
company of Sun Pharmaceutica
SUN PHARMACEUTICAL Industries group) 2,871,903 2,055,073
INDUSTRIES LTD (India) Payment of goods thousand thousand
Other related party (a company
. from Sun Pharmaceutical RUB 857,664| RUB 823,338
SC TERAPIA SA (Romania) fndustries group) Payment of goods thousand thousand
. . Oth lated
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries ﬁoérsrﬁna?hafmmge(;ﬁ;ﬁmany RUB 30,000
LLC Industries group) Issued loan thousand -
. . Oth lated
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries ﬁorﬁ’ggna'{;afm”gcﬁ’tﬁ“"a”y Payment under the RUB 390 RUB 360
LLC Industries group) sublease agreement thousand thousand
Other related party
(representative office of a
. fS
Representative office of Sun ;‘;‘;}?ﬁ;‘g’eﬁﬁc:i“mms Payment under RUB 1,689 RUB 1,687
Pharmaceutical Industries Limited | group in Russia) agreements thousand thousand
Other related party (a company : Under contracts for the
from Sun Pharmaceutical sale of goods, works RUB 11 RURB 43
. Industries group) ot g ’ ?
PISC Biosintez services thousand thousand
lated
| Other related party (& company'| (5,4 sale and RUB 19,573 RUB 401
PISC Biosintez Industries group) purchase agreement thousand thousand
gimfsml&g? party (i?‘;??aﬂy Agreement (for RUB 1,538
OIT SUH anmaceutic
Industries group) contract _ thousand
PISC Biosintez manufacturing) -
Other refated party (a company
from Sun Pharmaceutical RUB 955,000| RUB 550,000
PJSC Biosintez Industries group) Issued loan thousand thousand
Oth lated
o ﬁon?rsrsna;haﬁnar;zeﬁgﬁpmy Repayment of the RUB 500,000
PISC Biosintez Industries group) issued loan thousand -
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Other related party (a company | Payment of interest
from Sun Pharmaceutical |y der the loan RUB 34,754
.. Industri ’

PISC Biosintez ndustries group) agreement thousand -

Principal shareholder (99 USDb 5,873

percent of stocks) thousand

RUB 455,275

Sun Pharma (Netherlands) B.V. Repayment of a short- thousand
Private company limited by shares term / long-term loan -

Principal shareholder (99 USD 120

percent of stocks) thousand

Payment of interest RUB 9,159
Sun Pharma (Netherlands) B.V, under the loan thousand RUB 17,288
Private company limited by shares agreement thousand

Form of settlements with related parties — monetary (cash transfer).

In 2021, the following amounts were accrued in favour of key management personnel (management)*: wages —
RUB 88,524 thousand; paid annual leave.in the amount of RUB 9,226 thousand; year-end bonus for 2020 in the
amount of RUB 7,100 thousand, other bonuses — RUB 5,540 thousand, sick leave payments amounted to RUB
80 thousand. In 2021, the Company granted short-term interest-free loans to management personnel amounting
to RUB 600 thousand. There were no long-term payments in favour of key management personnel in 2020.

In 2020, the following amounts were accrued in favour of key management personnel (management)*: wages —
RUB 77,237 thousand; paid annual leave in the amount of RUB 6,575 thonsand; year-end bonus for 2019 in the
amount of RUB 6,028 thousand, other bonuses — RUB 7,223 thousand, sick leave payments amounted to RUB
114 thousand. In 2020, the Company granted short-term interest-free loans to management personnel
amounting to RUB 2,895 thousand. There were no long-term payments in favour of key management personnel
in 2020.

* Key management personnel (management):

General Director

Chief Accountant

Financial Director

Director of the Department (Finance Division)

HR Director

Head of the Commercial Department

Marketing Director

Director of the Department (Prescription Medicines Department)

Director for Regulatory and Government Affairs

Director of the Depariment (Business Development and Analytics Division)

Senior pharmacist in charge of the warehouse for wholesaling medical products

Head of the Legal Division

National Sales Manager (Prescription Medicines Division)

National Sales Manager (Pharmacy Division)
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Head of Commercial Sales (Commercial Sales Division)
Field Force Effectiveness Manager

Head of Proposals

Head of Pharmacy Division

Senior Medical Advisor

6.10. Information about the risks of business activity

6.10.1 General information about potential major risks of business activity.

The Company's activities are subject to various risks that may affect the achievement of set objectives. For
the purposes of management of potential risks, the Company has implemented and developed a risk-based
approach to business activities aimed at ensuring that the Company's management makes the most effective and
efficient management decisions under uncertainty and identifying opportunities for achievement of the
Company's objectives.

The most significant risks that could affect the Company's activities are grouped as follows:

Credit risk;
Liguidity risk;
Currency risk;

@

&

Legal risks,

6.10.2 Disclosure of information about credit risks.

The Company’s credit risk is mainly concentrated in its trade and financial activities, and other accounts
receivable.

Management is making every possible effort to minimize the Company’s risk exposure. In particular, the
creditworthiness of customers is assessed on the basis of the contractors’ financial statements, which is a
prerequisite for establishing credit limits under contracts for supply of goods. Management believes that there

are no significant losses for which no provision for impairment related to these and other receivables was made
as at 31 December 2021.

In order to reduce the risk of impairment of receivables from commercial organizations, the Company
implements a number of procedures. Credit risk is determined by summarizing the probability and the possible
impact of events that affect the customers’ ability to meet their obligations. Credit rating is assigned to a
customer at the beginning of cooperation and is then periodically reassessed on the basis of its credit history. As
part of the credit risk management policy, the Company carries out preventive procedures, which include, but
are not limited to, advance payments, requirement of collaterals, bank guarantees, letters of credit, and third
party guarantees. To collect overdue receivables, the Company performs a number of actions starting from

notification, suspension of the supply of goods, offsetting, and applying to courts.

As at 31 December 2021, the receivables secured by guarantees and sureties were as follows:
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Buyer ?:l:)li;:mount, S:::lézt:za:ubles Guarantor / Surety
BSS Q0O 2,946,569 10,000,000 VTB Bank OAO
Vita Line OO0 100,108,687 130,000,000 Rosbank

250,000,000 Alfa-Bank AO
Grand Capital FC 000 470,113,882

500,600,000 VTB Bank OAO
GD? 19,805,630 20,000,000 Moscow Credit Bank PAO
Zdravservis 000 334,555 15,000,000 Alfa-Bank AQ
Tnterlek 000 42,032,606 20,000,900 Alfo-Bank A

70,000,000 Sberbank of Russia PAO
Katren NPK AO 728,348,731 1,500,000,000 Katren ZAO (Russia)
Magnit Pharma O00 29,773,110 160,000,000 Tender AQ
NEO-PHARM 4,814,371 30,000,000 Sberbank of Russia PAO
Protek TsV ZAO 1,172,726,036 1,150,000,000 Sherbank of Russia PAO
Pulse FC 000 184,695,298 600,000,000 RaiffeisenBank ISC
Farmperspektiva JSC 209,446,602 150,000,000 RaiffeisenBank JSC
Total 2,965,146,077 4,625,000,000

6.10.3 Disclosure of information about liquidity risk.

The Company monitors the risk of liquidity shortage at the stage of preparing a cash flow budget and
reviewing its implementation. The Company aims to maintain a balance between the provision of money and
flexibility through the use of loans granted by the parent company. The cash flow budget takes into account the
timing of cash inflows and outflows from the Company’s operations. Decisions to invest available funds or raise
external funding are adopted based on the projected cash flows. Through implementation of the liquidity risk

management policy the Company ensures the availability of sufficient cash to meet liabilities when due.

6.10.4 Disclosure of information about currency risks.

In 2021, the Company settled a debt denominated in a foreign currency (US dollars) related to loans
received, so the Company minimized its currency risk exposure. Due to the devaluation of the dollar during
2021, the Company incurred foreign exchange gains totalling RUB 5,517 thousand.

In order to reduce currency risk, the Company has switched to contracts with suppliers of goods providing
for payments in rubles. With respect to monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the
Company's policy is aimed at maintaining the net position at risk within reasonable limits by purchasing and
selling foreign currency at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances.

Existence and movements of liabilities denominated in foreign currencies:

Liabilities denominated in US dollars Liabilities denominated in Euros
(USD’000) (EUR000)
Balance as at 31/12/2019 5,916 None
New liabilities 77 None
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Reversed (5,993) None
Balance as at 31/12/2020 0 None
Balance as at 31/12/2021 0 None

Official foreign currency exchange rates set by the Central Bank of the Russian Federation as at
the balance sheet date were as follows:

Exchange rate as at 31/12/2021 Exchange rate as at 31/12/2020
US dollar (USD) 742926 73.8757

After the reporting date, the ruble rate dropped by 41.07 % against the US dollar and at the date of
signing {compiling) of these statements (18 March 2021) amounted to 104.8012 rubles per US dollar.

6.10.5  Disclosure of information about other risks.

At present, the Company’s major legal risks are related to changes in the tax legislation, legal
regulations, and amendments to bylaws.

Currently, Russia has a number of taxes imposed at the federal, regional, and local levels. These taxes
include value-added tax, corporate income tax, property tax, various insurance contributions (for mandatory
pension insurance, mandatory social insurance, compulsory medical insurance), and other taxes.

The current tax legislation is subject to frequent changes. In addition, the interpretation of certain
provisions of tax legislation can be changed by the judiciary. This results in a large number of disputes between
tax authorities and taxpayers. These disputes are mainly resolved in cousts, In addition, compliance with tax and
other laws (for example, customs and currency laws) is subject to examination by various government
authorities entitled to impose fines and penalties.

In accordance with applicable laws, tax authorities may audit the company’s activities for the three
years preceding the year of audit. The fact that the company’s activities for a certain period have been audited
by tax authorities does not mean that the company’s tax liabilities for that period will not be audited in the
future: tax authorities have the right to conduct a repeated tax audit by decision of a higher level tax authority or
in case the taxpayer files revised tax declarations stating a lesser amount of tax than that declared previously.

The tax risks resulting from all these facts considerably exceed those that are customary for companies
in countries with a better developed tax system. Management believes that the relevant provisions of legislation
have been interpreted correctly and that the probability of maintaining the status of the Company in the context

of tax, currency and customs legislation as at 31 December 2021 is high.

6.10.6 Impact of the pandemic on the operations

The COVID-19 outbreak in 2020 forced the Company to take additional measures and incur additional
expenses related to employee safety. These expenses have not had a material impact on the Company’s
operations.

According to our estimates consequences of the pandemic will not have an impact on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

6.11. Summary
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According to the results of its activities in 2021, the Company earned a profit of RUB 393,656

thousand. According to the results of its activities in 2020, the Company incurred a loss of RUB (173,212)

thousand. RUB 000
Indicator 2021 2020
Net profit 393,656 (173,212)
Number of ordinary shares 163,000 163,000
Basic earnings / loss per share 2 (1)

In 2021, sales increased by 15.23 percent, while the share of the cost of sales in revenue decreased by

5.79 percent (63.14 percent in 2021 vs. 68.93 percent in 2020), and the share of selling expenses in revenue

decreased insignificantly by 0.97 percent (27.67 percent in 2021 vs 28.64% percent in 2020).

Other expenses decreased signiticantly in 2021 by RUB 250,515 thousand (49.75 percent) as a result of

the establishment of a provision for impairment of goods close to their expiry dates and exchange differences.

Other income also decreased by RUB 8,152 thousand (5.45 percent) as a result of the receipt of bonuses from

suppliers of goods and exchange differences.

Director
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